
Loxahatchee Groves Town Council 
Regular Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, November 6, 2007 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District Council Chambers 
6:30 PM - 10:30PM 

Members Present: 

Dave Browning, Mayor 

Marge Herzog, Vice-Mayor 

Dave Autrey, Council Member 

Dennis C. Lipp, Council Member 

Dr. J. William Louda, Council Member 

Members Absent: 

None 

Others Attending: 

Michelle Kantor (NCS)
 

Matthew Lippman, Interim Town Clerk (NCS)
 

Dr. Irv Rosenbaum, Interim Town Manager (NCS)
 

David N. Tolces, Esq., Town Attorney
 

Members of the Public
 

Members Present: 

Dave Browning, Mayor 

Marge Herzog, Vice-Mayor 

Dave Autrey, Council Member 

Dennis C. Lipp, Council Member 

Members Absent: 

None 



1. - 4. Call to Order/Roll Call/Pledge of Allegiance/Invocation 

Mayor Dave Browning called the meeting to order at 6:48 p.m. He then requested the roll call 

by Town Clerk Matthew Lippman. Upon completion of the roll, the Mayor requested everyone 

stand for the Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation. 

5. Approval of Agenda 

Vice-Mayor Herzog MOTIONED to approve the Agenda, SECONDED by Councilman 

Louda and the MOTION passed unanimously, 5-0. 

Consent Agenda: 

Councilman Autrey MOTIONED to accept the Consent Agenda, SECONDED by Vice

Mayor Herzog and then discussion was opened: 

6.	 Approval of Minutes from: 

a.) October 2, 2007 Town Council Meeting 

b.) October 9, 2007 Ordinance Workshop 

Vice-Mayor Herzog noted that on page 25 the name of the Ranch was incorrect, she added 

that it should read King Ranch not Sugar Cane Ranch. She then said she had a question 

on the expenditure report and asked when the signs would be up. 

Town Clerk Lippman responded that the signs were already up. 

Vice-Mayor Herzog also noted that on the Planning and Zoning Report it said that Michael 

Ireland's building was 400 sq feet but it should read 4000 sq feet. 

Councilman Lipp noted that page 14 Tom Collins should read Tom Pelham. He also asked 

if the spelling of Ron Jarriels name had been corrected already. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS)	 Page 2 of46 



7. Expenditure Report 

8. PBC Planning, Zoning, & Building Town Report 

MOTION to accept Consent Agenda, Items 6-8 with corrections to minutes as noted, 

SECONDED by Vice-Mayor Herzog and the MOTION passed unanimously, 5-0. 

Regular Agenda: 

9. Conditional Use Approval: 
a. (Control No.2004-961) (Application PDD-2006-188) (Southern Crossing MUPD) 
GENERAL LOCATION: Northwest comer of Southern Boulevard and "E" Road 
(Southern Crossing MUPD) 
TITLE: An Official Zoning Map Amendment to a Planned Development District. 
REQUEST: Rezoning from the Agricultural Residential (AR) Zoning District to the 
Multiple Use Planned Development (MUPD) Zoning District. 
APPLICATION SUMMARY: Proposed is the rezoning of9.13 acres of land from the 
Agricultural Residential (AR) Zoning District to the Multiple Use Planned Unit 
Development (MUPD) Zoning District to allow for the development of7,552 square feet 
of financial institutions and 29,856 square feet of Inedical office for a total of 37,408 
square feet. The proposed Preliminary Site Plan indicates two (2) financial institution 
buildings and five (5) medical office buildings for a total of seven (7) buildings. The site 
plan shows a total of 157 parking spaces with access to the site from Southern Boulevard 
and Loxahatchee Avenue. 

Town Attorney Tolces called upon Town Clerk Lippman to refer to a letter from Miller Land 

Planning Consultants, Inc. requesting a 30 day extension on the hearings 9a and 9b of the 

Agenda. 

Vice-Mayor Herzog MOTIONED to accept the 30 day extension on the hearing,
 

SECONDED by Councilman Louda and then discussion was opened:
 

Mayor Browning asked if there was discussion from the Town Council. 

Councilman Louda said he had no problem with the extension but he hadn't seen a reason for 

the req uest. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 3 of 46 



Vice-Mayor Herzog asked what the sign would read. Palms West Plaza is what the sign reads 

but the plans state Southern Crossings. 

Brad Miller, Miller Land Planning Consultants- Mr. Miller began by saying that his firm 

represents the 2 projects. He said to answer Councilman Louda's question about 

postponement that they are looking more closely at the staff report and trying to simplify the 

whole process and clarify some of the conditions of approval. I also want to make sure that 

these projects would be exempt from the Moratorium criteria. 

Town Attorney Tolces said if Mr. Miller wants to bring them up later when the Moratorium is 

being considered that he would prefer to hear the entire matter when it is presented. 

Vice-Mayor Herzog said that her question had still not been answered in regards to the name on 

the plaza. 

Mr. Miller responded that to be honest he didn't' have the answer but would have the 

information the next time they come back. 

Town Attorney Tolces said based on your individual reviews of the reports to relay any concerns 

on the information to Town Staff who will meet with them prior to the hearings. 

Councilman Autrey asked about the horse trail design and maintenance. 

Town Attorney Tolces asked again for the Council to focus on the request for continuance and 

reminded them that on December 4, 2007 when Miller Land Planning and Consultants comes 

back that they will have time to ask questions them. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 4 of 46 



Town Clerk Lippman also assured the Council that any comments they had on the projects 

would be brought back to Miler Land Planning and Consultants. 

Councilman Autrey asked what if there isn't enough time for these concerns to be addressed. 

Town Attorney Tolces responded that then they could continue. He then stated for the record 

that December 4, 2007 would be when the projects were extended to. 

MOTION to accept the 30 day extension on the hearing, passed unanimously, 5-0. 

b. (Control No.2005-00393) (Application Z-2006-00271) (Loxahatchee Retail 
Center LOX) 
GENERAL LOCATION: Approximately 1~000 feet west ofD Road on the north side 
of Southern Boulevard 
TITLE: An Official Zoning Map Amendment REQUEST: To adopt a resolution 
rezoning from the Agricultural Residential (AR) and the General Commercial (CG) 
Zoning Districts to the Community Commercial (CC) Zoning District 
APPLICATION SUMMARY: Proposed is the rezoning of a 2.62-acre parcel from the 
Agricultural Residential (AR) and the Comlnercial General (CG) Zoning Districts to the 
Community Commercial (CC) Zoning District to allow for the development of a retail 
use. The proposed site plan indicates a one story 11,400 square foot building with 60 
parking spaces. Access to the site is from Southern Boulevard. 2005-00393 

Mayor Browning reminded the Public that they would have time at the meeting on December 4, 

2007 to ask questions and comment on these two projects. 

Councilman Louda MOTIONED to accept the 30 day extension on the hearing,
 

SECONDED by Vice-Mayor Herzog, and MOTION to accept the 30 day extension on
 

the hearing, passed unanimously, 5-0.
 

c. Monitoring Time Extension:
 
(Control No.1998-042) (Application SR 1998-042.5)(FMM 1 LLC)
 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: The property is approximately 1.76 acres and is on the
 
north side of Southern Boulevard~ approximately 1,300 feet west of "D" Road.
 
DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL BEING REVIEWED: Zoning Petition 1998-042 was
 
Approved by the adoption of Resolution R-98-1313 on August 27, 1998. The resolution
 

«-~~«-:·:":«·"""""'"."'.OY.·"":N.···.:-"..·./' ~...t:!««-'}«o":-·./"~"'«JY.o",v~.~·. _=<"=.~,,~-,:<o:-:- ,,-,-=.. -:-:-,-=,,~ :.»:.:-:- "."'..:.: <~-:-:-:- : :;:."."'..>:-'X~"."'.~..t«w:«-:.y< :.. ~ xO"..)««.: :."."'.~~~oY.-:.:.:~:.:.::«.~w~"'-: ••v,.t'~:-:-~< .. .. ....:-:.:.»y.:·:·»''''':'''~»Y'''·':''''''-''~~''''':-~~<-:'''«-''''''-:«J:.''':.~"<ox·~":<o:.~~:~"~·w~,,~.:~:.:""X~.:~~~.~,,:.,,~,,,~~~,,,.·.:,,,~"X.t:!« ·"."'.~<.w'':o':~·~''«'<'''Y.'o'''''''Y.oC~-:-X-:'''''H-»:''''''':~:JY.o':-':~~~.:.''·''~''',(»,.'''-:~:-: ..

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 5 of 46 



rezoned property to the ComlTIunity COITIITIercial Zoning District. The zoning action is 
now being reviewed pursuant to Article 2.E., "Monitoring," of the Palm Beach County 
Unified Land Development Code for failure to commence developlTIent 
COUNTY STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval ofa two-yeartilTIe extension, 
frOITI August 10, 2007., to August 10., 2009., to COITIITIenCe developlTIent 

Town Attorney Tolces reminded the Council that they publically advertised this hearing for 

7: 15PM and since it is only 7PM to skip over this agenda Item and come back to it after 7: 15PM. 

Vice-Mayor Herzog MOTIONED to table Agenda Item 9c until after 7:15PM, SECONDED by 

Councilman Autrey, and MOTION passed unanimously, 5-0. 

This item was returned to after Agenda Item #10a. 

Town Attorney Tolces read the Agenda Item. 

Jennifer Vale-Land Design South, & Frank Papper, 4667 Island Reef Drive, Wellington, 

one of the owners of the property- Ms. Vale and Mr. Pappar introduced themselves to the 

Council. 

Mayor Browning said he knows very little about this project. 

Mr. Papper said that the original potential buyer backed out of this project due to the confusion 

prior to incorporation. He said they have now secured another contract with a developer who 

wants to develop it commercially and that is the reason we are asking for an extension. 

Town Attorney Tolces asked the owner what was already approved by the County. 

Ms. Vale said the original approval was by the Board of County Commissioners in August 1998. 

It was approved for a little over 11 ,000 sq feet of Retail. There have been extensions previously 

granted by the County. We have been working with the County and with Town Staff and we 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 6 of 46 



have not yet received site plan approval so we would have to come forward to you which is why 

we were interested in what you just accepted with the Moratorium. This project has recently 

changed ownership hands. 

Town Attorney Tolces listed the options in regards to this request for the Town Council. 

Because of the public notice you have to open up to comment from the Public. 

Mayor Browning asked Ms. Vale what kind of extension they were looking for with this project. 

Ms. Vale responded a 2 -year time extension. 

Mayor Browning said that Councilman Lipp had made a great comment earlier referring to the 

fact that the Council would love to see Southern not be a hodgepodge. If that road does get 6 

laned, your client might not want to face Southern anymore. He stated that the Moratorium is 

only for a year. 

Ms. Vale said that the extension they requested is for the zoning of the property. She said the 

voluntary commitments were consistent with the Rural Character some time ago and that they 

would still be required to go to the Council for site plan approval. 

Mayor Browning asked if the Council had any questions. 

Councilman Autrey said we have don't have much information on this, we really have nothing 

that speaks for the project at all. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 7 of46 



Vice-Mayor Herzog said all they are asking for is us to hold the zoning for 2-years. 

Ms. Vale said that the voluntary commitments were approved in 1998. 

Mayor Browning asked for direction from Town Staff. 

Councilman Lipp asked what the zoning was, he said he heard retail. 

Town Clerk Lippman told the Council they could either grant or deny the request or ask for 

postponement till the next Town Council Meeting, Tuesday, November 20,2007. If they go with 

the postponement, then you could pose some conditions for them to consider. 

Town Attorney Tolces suggested we try and get a copy of County Commissions approval and to 

consider reasonable conditions. 

Coucnilman Louda stated it was the density and co density he wanted to look at because part of 

the visioning is how dense do we want these. 

Mayor Browning said this will be continued at the next Town Council Meeting, Tuesday, 

November 20, 2007. 

Councilman Autrey MOTIONED to table Agenda Item 9c until the next Town Council 

Meeting, Tuesday, November 20,2007, SECONDED by Vice-Mayor Marge Herzog, and 

MOTION passed unanimously, 5-0. 

~~'~':«".-"'Mo~-:-~.: .....~~~~...-..y«-:""""'»:"-»y'~."",,:~.~X"',,,~~'''«I«':«'>~oY.''':':-:«I'~Y"':~~:'>~"""'''''''~·:~''~:'~:.:''''lo~<:~'':':''':.oc«~~:~~~.v.:~~-:.:,>~:-v.-»~~: ...........~~~y,.:-:«.,.:.:~:-..,...:-:.:~.-:~-:.~~:~~-« ........~:-~:-::<-:.N«.:'>:.,.:-:«.:.:,>:-. ..,...')".:.:,,~:<-.~:-:.:.,.:-:.»»=<-:-,.:- ....:-....y'~:«.:.:.M{''':O:'~»':-:''~''a:''<-»:~:~:.eow,.»:1-:':':':-:':«':"':«.:.'~.'."'."-,,:"" •••:-:.:-::•.•:,,,,:.:':-:"-:-:':-~:««-:'Y~~~:-:-~:«"':'~"y'~.>y'.y'«-

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 8 of46 



Nancy Neil, 14141 Tangerine Drive-Ms. Neil said she would defer her comments until 

Tuesday, December 4, 2007 since the plan has been postponed. Her comments were on the 

development of Southern and Tangerine. She said she would wait and see what they come up 

with then. 

Councilman Louda asked Ms. Neil if her land touches their land and if she had been contacted 

previously by the developer. 

Ms. Neil replied that no, her property is actually across the street. 

10. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS: 

a. ORDINANCE NO. 2007-07 (1st reading)
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,
 
FL()RIDA~ PROVIDING FOR A MORATORIUM CONSISTENT WITH THE TOWN CHARTER ON
 
THE PROCESSING AND REVIEW OF APPLICATIONS FOR DEVELOPMENT ORDERS AND
 
DEVELOPMENT PERMITS~ AND APPLICATIONS FOR AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN'S
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, WITHIN THE CORPORATE BOUNDARIES OF THE TOWN;
 
PR()VIDING FOR EXEMPTIONS; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR
 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
 

Town Attorney Tolces started by saying that before he reads the Ordinance he wants it on the 

record that this has been advertised in the Palm Beach Post and he is submitting the proof of 

advertisement for the record. He then conducted the 1st reading of the Ordinance 2007-07. 

He said that due to the fact of the revisions made he had provided the Council with 2 copies of 

the Moratorium. One copy is clean and the other has red lines due to the revisions. 

Councilman Autrey MOTIONED to approve Ordinance 2007-07, SECONDED by 

Councilman Louda, and discussion was then opened: 

o(lo"~..60~··"'·"o».."""~·~·~~·:«O)~){~:~·~,<:«~·,-:-~««•.....,.~~..W.o»~·-"hY. ..""Yo(''':-:-~X~'·':~:~~"'X..)~:-:'·«~:"'·"'''''''''':«-~':-»:~~~~~:oY.>:o(lo:-~-I' ..~:«~.~:..) ..• ~w..'¢oo:Io:.Y.«o::.y.:<'~-":-:~"~~·-=-':':-=--"-=':"~:~"'~~'''»~~~'»-"J»~~':-:':-:':-:':-:':<X>':«,y",y.<oY.«.:-.~«.:<.:.:.:<o»:-~.·.t~""':'~«~:oI'~~~:.~., w~»~-:.:-:.»:.:« -.:.:«.:.:":../.:-:~..t-»y.".oY>:'''y' ..«.~~«,,?:<.y'<.:.:.":.»~.'«««-:-',":-~»:~,.e.:-:-:-'.y.->~:«'o:.y'.:.'oOo.".:.:~,, 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 9 of46 



Town Attorney Tolces recommended that Town Staff come up first and introduce the Ordinance 

and then the Council and Public could comment or ask questions. He then introduced: 

Shelly Eichner-Calvin-Giordano- Ms. Eichner said that a Moratorium is a very serious move to 

make. She explained it is a stop on certain aspects of development, however, it is an excellent 

planning tool especially for a newly incorporated town. She mentioned that once the visioning 

process begins then the state required Comprehensive Plan will follow along with Land 

Development Regulation and Codes. With all this going on, if a moratorium is not enacted 

zoning could still go on with Palm Beach County. She said if you hold off for awhile and decide 

which projects to take into account, you have projects sort of in the process or well in the 

process. You have to decide what should be subject to the Moratorium and what should be 

exempt otherwise everyone will be coming in the door by County code. 

Mayor Browning asked if there were any questions for Ms. Eichner. 

Councilman Lipp said that with the visioning process it would be nice if there was a Southern 

Boulevard Corridor Study attached since so many of the applicants being talking about are 

looking at Southern Boulevard. We also have DOT putting in a 6 lane vision of Southern 

Boulevard sometime soon. How can we get people involved in the visioning process that are 

also in the application process? 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 10 of 46 



Ms. Eichner responded that once the planning sessions start that invitations would be extended 

to the residents, property owners, and business owners. The facilitator and staff would have to 

reach out to these people. 

Mayor Browning asked if there were any other questions from the Council for Ms. Eichner. 

Councilman Louda asked if this would impact the on-going process to change to 1 &5. 

Ms. Eichner replied no, that is an application that is already in process. 

Town Attorney Tolces said that it won't impact anyone building a single family home. 

Councilman Louda stated that the main point of this is what we incorporated for. We need to 

take a step back, take a breath, and get the visioning going. 

Councilman Autrey referred to Page 10, Section 4 with the changed language regarding 

exemptions. He asked what is the exemption provision and how will it apply. 

Town Attorney Tolces said this section was included in the Ordinance to allow applicants who 

had exisiting applications pending with the County to come before the Council within 30 days to 

apply for exemption from the Moratorium. These are for applications that may have been 

submitted but have not gone through a review process or haven't been approved. This 

provision in Section 4 provides for this process. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 11 of 46 



Councilman Louda said the way I looked at that was there is a right to know act and a right to be 

told act and if we enact the Moratorium we should notify land owners that this is going to be 

enacted. Should we have a mailing or put it on the website? 

Town Clerk Lippman responded that a lot of the interaction you are speaking of will come from 

the County. They are already contacting Planning, Building, and Zoning and they are already 

cycling them back to us. 

Councilman Louda asked if since the Moratorium had been brought up if the number of 

applications to the County have gone up. 

Town Clerk Lippman said he couldn't say for the number of the applications, but the activity 

level has definitely increased. 

Town Attorney Tolces answered Councilman Louda's question by saying that nothing in the 

Moratorium requires us to do so and that Planning, Building, and Zoning would be aware the 

Moratorium is being considered. 

Town Clerk Lippman said that it would also be posted on the website. 

Vice-Mayor Herzog asked about a project with 4 phases. If one phase is already done and the 

next one is in the future, will the applicant have to ask for permission. 

Town Attorney Tolces replied that if they had site plan approval it would be okay. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 12 of 46 



Councilman Autrey reiterated what Ms. Eichner said. We incorporated to give the Council time 

to plan it's future-it is for a year not forever. Mr. Tolces said we can even amend the Ordinance 

if necessary. 

Town Attorney Tolces said one concern of property owners might be that some projects may 

receive approval but then will have to come back for site plan approval. How will this affect the 

Town's visioning process. 

Ms. Eichner responded that the process is set up now to where if site plans are not exempt then 

setback, lighting, landscape, color and style could all be determined by the County. She 

suggested taking into account the rational reason for the Moratorium which she said is a big 

step to take. The M word is not viewed kindly in a land development setting. 

Councilman Louda said in the two applications before the Council this evening he didn't see the 

term Rural Vista Guidelines at all. The Community worked really hard on that and site plans are 

very important because they represent the final look of a project. 

Ms. Eichner said in liaison to the County you could request to not exempt site plans from the 

Moratorium. 

Mayor Browning said the reason we incorporated is to get away from the County, we need time, 

we want to hear from the people of the Groves. This is for changes that impact density and 

population- we need input from the people. 

Mayor Browning asked if there were any additional comments from the Council. 

"'~':o""N'.'Xo."«Io:\o"~~":'·';"'.""".~'-:-"V~<b'»'''"",,''Mo:'''''':''·:·'Y.,,,'''''':«-';o.':oy'~···'oCo:~ :.t.-":.:':'·''':~''''''''''':-'''''Y''~.~w.:.''''''''':''''''''Y.~Y',,'''y'~ .....-.:o':J:o'>:~'Y.>~:'''.iJY. ~«.::··.,.y.<-:~·:· ••• .,.~"- ·~y ..~:.~:~:-XA ~.: ..v v.~x~y..,.~~ : « ~~ :.~y..:-:-: :.N...•«.»,.:-:.:.,.:.'>:.:.: :.,.: <-Y'o':""':"'.;:.:-:.:.,.:.:.:-:--.,.••: ,:OY..:.:.y.: :.:.:.-.: :.Y...»y?:..~ ~«~~:.~< ·.·.J:o'. -.:...:.:.: : :-:.x.»»:.· ,.: : x.~ ,.: x.:-xoC>: :- :-:-:-:.: ,.:~ . 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 13 of 46 

http:Y'o':""':"'.;:.:-:.:.,.:.:.:-:--.,.��


Councilman Lipp asked Mr. Tolces his opinion on the site plan Moratorium advantages and 

disadvantages. 

Town Attorney Tolces responded he would have to mirror Ms. Eichner's comment that the if the 

Town is comfortable with the process in place then they can work with the County on site plans 

approved then it would not need to be included in the Moratorium. The other suggestion would 

be to just wait, and the way to do this is through this temporary Moratorium effective until 

November 2008. 

Councilman Autrey asked about the logistics of site plan review and if we would have a staff 

person to work with the applicants. 

Town Attorney Tolces referred Councilman Autrey's question to Kevin McGinley. 

Kevin McGinley, LRM, 2450 Palm Road, West Palm Beach- Mr. McGinley introduced himself 

and said his role now is to act as a liaison between the County and Town Staff. He explained 

that if the Town decided to put site plans in exemption the Town can look at any application and 

add it's own conditions to the site plan. 

Councilman Autrey said he thinks that with the real estate environment being the way it is, if 

someone has the opportunity to something that is a good thing. 

Town Attorney Tolces said that Staff could provide to some amendments to the Ordinance on 

the 15t reading, including language stating that if Council has the desire to approval the 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 14 of 46 



application for the site plan for development projects that have been previously approved prior 

to final approval by the DRO. 

Councilman Louda said his question was if we just go with telling Mr. McGinley our wishes there 

would be no legal push in them following it. 

Mayor Browning opened the discussion to the Public. 

Bradley Miller-Miller Land Planning Consultants- Mr. Miller said he has two projects in the 

process. He explained in his instance with both applications that they have been in the process 

for over four years. He said his concern with the site plan when they finish the zoning 

application they have to resubmit to the County, but if a Moratorium is in effect we would be 

shut out. I think what needs to be addressed is situations such as mine, that some language be 

added to allow the continuation of the process. He said he thinks that the zoning involved does 

include a site plan with it, but it is just not the final site plan. He said he hopes to reach an 

agreement and has time to respond to this with something in writing for the record. 

Councilman Louda asked Mr. Tolces to comment on things already in the process. 

Town Attorney Tolces responded that if the Council wanted to amend the Ordinance they could 

do so. He said Section 4 does address applications in the process though. He said that Mr. 

Miller couldn't because his application hadn't been submitted yet. 

Vice-Mayor Herzog asked if Staff could make the wording state that if subsequent things need 

to be submitted to go to Building that the applicant be allowed to proceed with their application. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 15 of 46 



Town Attorney Tolces explained that we could put into process a provision that would allow site 

plan approvals or ORO approvals related to previously approved applications that those items 

could be considered for subsequent action. 

Vice-Mayor Herzog said it didn't seem fair that if an applicant is already in the process they 

should be stopped just because they haven't submitted the application. 

Town Attorney Tolces said from a legal perspective he didn't want to put the Council in a 

position to say yes to one project and no to another. 

Councilman Louda suggested some sort of objective criteria. 

Mayor Browning stated that some projects have been in the works for years. 

Town Attorney Tolces asked Mr. Miller if his client had submitted their request before the bill 

asking for the Town's incorporation. 

Vice-Mayor Herzog asked if since the agents were changed if that is why they are in the 

process now. 

Mr. Miller answered that he took over from Mr. Baseheart the original planner. 

Town Clerk Lippman yielded the floor to Kevin McGinley. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 16 of 46 



Mr. McGinley explained that after three years you will need a time extension on a project. He 

suggested going to the monitoring department of the County and identifying the projects already 

in the system on which the clock is ticking and no work has been done on. He brought up Acts 

II church which was in the process. He also explained that many projects which were in the 

process during incorporation lost about six months of time in the system. 

Councilman Louda asked why the clocks weren't stopped for the incorporation and that time 

wasn't added back to the projects. 

Town Attorney Tolces answered that the clocks had continued to run. He said if you want to 

clarify in Section 4 of the Ordinance that projects currently subject to monitoring with previous 

approval from the County are eligible to come and apply for an exemption. 

He said this would require those individuals to come forward and ask to not be considered part 

of the Moratorium. He said he would recommend to let the people come in and explain that 

they lost time due to incorporation. 

Michael Haggerty-Dynamic Towers- Mr. Haggerty introduced himself and said he represented 

a project that had been submitted to the County on September 19, 2007. He said the process is 

long and they stayed in contact with the Town even prior to the elections. He said they did have 

that gap of time where new applications were not being accepted by the County until the ILA 

was approved. He explained that he has issues with the Moratorium and the way it is written. 

He mentioned that his attorney Deborah Monahue was supposed to attend the meeting and 

couldn't but submitted her correspondence to the Council. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 17 of 46 



Town Attorney Tolces explained that Ms. Monahue states in her letter that the meeting is set 

with ORO for December 14, 2007. This would be an example of something to maybe exempt
 

from the Moratorium.
 

Mr. Haggerty said that they are not trying to stop the Moratorium. He explained they are just
 

opposing it as it is currently written. He said Ms. Monahue had been trying to schedule
 

meetings with the Town Attorney to clarify their purpose and to move forward. He said the
 

reason behind the Moratorium is valid for the Town's purposes and that is great. He said again
 

that they are not trying to stop anything but they are asking for a little time to see which direction
 

to go with their project. He mentioned that they had even made a change to their project for the
 

County.
 

Mayor Browning asked Mr. Haggerty if they could work with the Council and to go before them
 

to request an exemption.
 

Mr. Haggerty said that they can't determine an avenue the way the Ordinance is written now.
 

He said they made some changes to the design to incorporate more of what the Town was
 

looking for. He said that he lives in the area that he loves and understands the feel for the area.
 

Councilman Louda said he was not in favor of changing anything to alternate Okeechobee
 

Boulevard. He said he thinks the tower was approved for the wrong place and that he would
 

love to see it over by the school.
 

Town Attorney Tolces said this project might fit into an exemption that is already provided for.
 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 18 of 46 



Mr. Haggerty said he is currently 800 feet back from the road and that they changed from the 

original flag pole design to a pine tree design. He said he didn't think the visual would be a 

problem. He said the tower was on a nursery and they would be able to landscape around it. 

Michael Sanchez-Johnson Group Land Developer- Mr. Sanchez introduced himself and got 

permission from Mayor Browning to hand out information to the Council. He said he was 

representing the property owner of the corner of F Road and Southern Boulevard. He said the 

site plan had been approved by the County in April 2006 and since then they had been actively 

pursuing all the permits and approvals needed to acquire a building permit. He explained his 

client has entered into negotiations to have a first class assisted living facility within the site. He 

showed that the existing zoning is commercial low office and it doesn't allow for this particular 

use. He said that the language of the Moratorium does not preclude changes of zoning and 

land use. He explained for his client to occupy this site that they would have to wait for the 

Moratorium to be over. He said he is asking for particular use on this site and for minor 

revisions to the original site plan for this use. 

Councilman Autrey asked what zoning is needed for the project. 

Mr. Sanchez responded he thinks the existing zoning is commercial. He said they would need 

to look into what zoning would provide for this particular project. 

Councilman Louda said when he first looked at this and the change that you wanted to do I 

thought that is was great. He said that his way of thinking would to not be to exempt this project 

though because right away it would be a zoning change. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 19 of46 



Mr. Sanchez said he had submitted a letter to Town Staff. 

Town Attorney Tolces said the application would have already had to be followed. The change 

might be within what the town wants to do. It might be the same amount of time as working with 

the Town on the Comprehensive Plan. 

Councilman Autrey asked if the zoning had already been changed. 

Town Attorney Tolces responded that if the Moratorium is adopted that the zoning cannot be 

changed and it is not exempt. 

Councilman Autrey said it sounds good to him but what reassurance do we have as to what will 

go there once the zoning is changed. 

Vice-Mayor Herzog said it was to iffy. 

Councilman Louda said if they waited a year he would do anything to help. 

Councilman Lipp asked if they could work with Town Staff to come up with a plan. 

Town Attorney said his concern is the purpose of the Moratorium is to maintain status quo. He 

said from a legal perspective this would lead to many more exemption requests. 

Town Clerk Lippman said he wanted to bring up a point that he wanted to caution the Council 

on one particular matter. He said at some point there needs to be a line drawn and if we open 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 20 of 46 



this to a monitoring process there could be thirty applications which one by one the Council 

would have to decide on. I would caution there is a lot out here we don't know about. We need 

to make a tough decision and it mayor may not upset the people here tonight. 

Ilene Rindom, 14285 Collecting Canal Road- Ms. Rindom said that the three men who 

presented their projects were here for their pockets. She said she is here for her community. 

She asked what the point of a Moratorium would be if everyone was exempted who came to the 

meeting tonight. She said a process needs to be put in to protect the neighborhood and that the 

Town had to go through it's own process to incorporate. 

Mayor Browning asked if there were additional comments from the Council. 

Mayor Browning asked if there were additional comments from the Public. 

Town Attorney Tolces said that with respect to the amendments discussed he would read them 

one at a time and read the proposed language drafted. The first one would be to add in Section 

3 a Paragraph 17 whether or not you want to exempt site plans subject to presentation of site 

plan to Town Council for approval and comment. 

Town Clerk Lippman asked if this would apply to someone who had not yet applied for a site 

plan. 

Councilman Autrey said he thought this was for projects already reviewed going for review. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 21 of46 



Town Clerk Lippman said in this case in front of us, one side is saying if the application is in 

process you are exempt and the other is if the application is not in yet for site plan review they 

are asking to be exempt. Under the moratorium they would not be exempt because the 

application is not in at this time. 

Town Attorney Tolces said if someone got the re-zoning approved they would need to do a new 

application to ORO of a formal site plan and then it would be reviewed by Staff. He said before 

the final process of ORO the Council could then use the Rural Vista Guidelines to be consistent 

with the Town. He said also that Staff would include in Section 4 under Paragraph 1 a (b) that 

would say...and is subject to monitoring and development code. 

Councilman Autrey said he was not okay with including the provision in Section 4. 

Town Attorney explained that this would be for projects that have received a re-zoning approval 

years ago but for some reason they haven't gone forward and submitted a site plan application 

or any type of variance application, but according to the ULOC they have a certain amount of 

time to do so. 

Councilman Louda said he would only want approvals in there. 

Mr. McGinley said that monitoring would kick in after the development has been approved. 

Town Clerk Lippman said he wanted to clarify the amendment that was just proposed and was 

accepted was the site plan approval. He asked if this one was eliminated wouldn't it be covered 

under what was already proposed. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 22 of 46 



Mr. McGinley said that there are two things that have to be monitored. The first is the 

commencement of development which is the three years and there are specific performance 

within the resolution. He said he thinks it is important to have the 2nd one in there because you 

can monitor the monitoring section from two points of view. 

Councilman Louda Amended his original MOTION to accept Ordinance 2007-11 and 

MOTIONED to accept Ordinance 2007-11 with the new amendments discussed, 

SECONDED by Vice-Mayor Herzog, the MOTION passed unanimously, 5-0. 

Town Attorney Tolces said he would prepare the amended Ordinance for the 2nd reading on 

Tuesday, November 20,2007. Councilman Louda asked if the Ordinance would be available on 

the Town's website. 

Town Clerk Lippman responded yes, as soon as the language is adjusted. 

b. ORDINANCE NO. 2007-11 (1st reading)
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,
 
FL()RIDA, AMENDING SECTION 14-35 OF THE TOWN'S CODE OF ORDINANCES, ENTITLED
 
"RUBBISH AND GARBAGE"~ REQUIRING THAT RUBBISH AND GARBAGE WHICH IS BEING
 
MAINTAINED ON PRIVATE PROPERTY TO BE SECURED, ENCLOSED AND NOT VISIBLE TO
 
THE GENERAL PUBLIC FROM THE PROPERTY LINE; REQUIRING THAT ALL INOPERABLE
 
MOTOR VEHICLES AND OTHER MACHINERY WHICH ARE BEING STORED ON PRIVATE
 
PROPERTY TO BE DRAINED OF FLUIDS AND POLLUTANT FREE; PROVIDING FOR
 
CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING
 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
 

Town Attorney Tolces conducted the 1st reading of Ordinance 2007-11. 

Councilman Louda MOTIONED to accept Ordinance 2007-11, SECONDED by Vice-Mayor 

Herzog, and discussion was then opened: 

Mayor Browning asked if there was any discussion from the Council. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 23 of46 



Councilman Lipp suggested that batteries were listed in the Ordinance. He asked if definition of 

fluids would be applicable. 

Mayor Browning said he is almost afraid to start listing them because they might leave 

something out. 

Town Attorney asked where they would like the word battery added. 

Storing motor vehicles, batteries, or other machinery 

Councilman Autrey said in Section 2 it states secured and enclosed and we should add an 

"and/or or "both". He said his thinking was with safety from a windstorm, as long as you secure 

it or have a place to store it. 

Town Attorney Tolces questioned the language the Council would want to use here. 

Councilman Autrey said just to give them an option to make it not visible. He brought this up 

because what if someone planted something that would take a year to grow. 

Town Clerk Lippman said the intent here could be deemed as compliant, similar to what ERM 

does with trees they plant. 

Mayor Browning asked if there were any additional comments from the Council. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 24 of 46 



Mayor Browning asked if there were any comments from the Public. 

Howard Voren, E Road- Mr. Voren stated that there are several things he wanted to point out. 

He said Councilman Autrey already addressed his 15t issue. Out of hurricane season people 

will have piles of branches. We should possibly look at the definition of rubbish and I also want 

to point out that when we had discussions concerning this not visible to the general public from 

the property line then at that point in time we were discussing inoperable vehicles. It should be 

reworded. 

Mayor Browning said I think we are all right there. He asked Mr. Voren to re-read the 

Ordinance. 

Mr. Voren also said that he didn't understand Councilman Autrey's time it takes to grow trees. 

He said he didn't know if it was advisable to mention it in there. 

Darlene Crawford, E Road- Ms. Crawford asked if there was something we already did to 

define rubbish. She mentioned that one man's rubbish is another man's treasure. She asked 

what is the definition of an inoperable vehicle? What if someone needs to get an engine 

replaced and they are trying to save up the money, is there a time limit? Why enclose 

something if it is not visible from the property line. It might be an expense that some residents 

can't afford. 

Town Attorney Tolces referred to the Code for the definition of Rubbish. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 25 of 46 



Town Clerk Lippman showed the definition on the screen. 

Councilman Louda said in response to Mr. Voren maybe we should take out the word rubbish 

and put in the words building material and debris. 

Mayor Browning asked if there were any additional comments from the Council. 

Mayor Browning asked if there were any additional comments from the Public. 

Town Attorney Tolces said for the record, before you vote, in the 5th line we deleted the term 

building. We added the word batteries after storing motor vehicles, and we added the word 

hazardous before, and we also added the "and/or" that Councilman Autrey requested. 

MOTION to accept Ordinance 2007-11 passed unanimously, 5-0. 

c. ORDINANCE NO. 2007-13 (1st reading)
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,
 
FL()RIDA, ENACTING A NEW SECTION OF THE TOWN'S CODE OF ORDINANCES, ENTITLED
 
"PlJBLIC NOTICE~ ADVERTISING COST RECOVERY"; TO PROVIDE FOR THE APPLICANT
 
SEEKING LAND DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL TO PAY THE COST OF ADVERTISING
 
ASSOCIATED WITH THE REQUIRED PUBLICATION OF PUBLIC NOTICE FOR LAND
 
DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY THE TOWN COUNCIL~
 

PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION~PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR
 
SEVERAB ILITY~ PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
 

Town Attorney Tolces conducted the 1st reading of Ordinance 2007-13. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 26 of46 



Town Attorney Tolces said the Ordinance had been drafted by the Council at the prior Town 

Meeting because the Town didn't want to bear the cost of public hearings for the applicants. It 

states the applicants will have to pay these fees prior to coming before the Town. 

Vice-Mayor Herzog MOTIONED to accept Ordinance 2007-13, SECONDED by Councilman 

Louda, and discussion was then opened: 

Councilman Autrey asked if there will be a fee schedule. 

Town Clerk Lippman replied that Planning, Building, and Zoning will be aware of the cost and 

the applicant will be educated of this at the beginning of the process. 

Mayor Browning asked if there were any additional comments from the Council. 

Mayor Browning asked if there were any comments from the Public. 

MOTION to accept Ordinance 2007-13 passed unanimously, 5-0. 

11. Proclamation: Don Williams for contributions to the Town 

Town Clerk Lippman addressed the Mayor and asked him to sign a proclalnation for Don 

Williams. The proclamation stated that Mr. Willialn's talent and dedication to the community 

website was outstanding. It honored and thanked hi111 from the cOffilnunity and the Town 

Council. It was dated Novelnber 6,2007. Mr. Lippman also stated t11at he had received an email 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 27 of 46 



from Mr. Williams earlier that day saying he was sorry he would be unable to attend the meeting 

this evening. 

Councilman Autrey MOTIONED to accept the proclamation, SECONDED by Councilman 

Louda, and MOTION passed unanimously, 5-0. 

Town Attorney Tolces stated that for the record this would be the Town's first proclamation. 

12. Town Logo Contest Discussion and announcement of winner 

Town Clerk Lippman put all the logo contest entries that were submitted on a screen. He 

explained that the voting done on Don Williams website was not done to direct the Council. He 

stated that one of the logo entrants, Dave Tezanos was not a resident of the Groves. He said 

he mentioned this for information purposes only at this point. He also recognized Catrina 

Crawford one of the logo entrants who is an eleven year old student at Loxahatchee Groves 

Elementary School. 

Councilman Louda asked if Mr. Williams had safeguard for the backing on the website. 

Town Clerk Lippman said that Mr. Williams had assured him it was built in and not an issue. He 

then proceeded to go through each logo entry on the screen. The logos were presented in the 

following order: 

1. Dave Tezanos 

2. LGLA 

3. Don Williams 

4. Marge Herzog 

5. Larry Lefkowitz 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 28 of 46 



6. Donna Alvis 

7. Nancy Fried-Tobin 

8. Rita Miller 

9. Diane Jenkins 

10. Catrina Crawford 

After the logos were all displayed, Town Clerk Lippman said that he could work with any of the 

artists to add the established and incorporated dates of the Town to their logo. He said the 

Council didn't need to focus on that part for their vote. 

Vice-Mayor Herzog announced that since she herself was a logo contest entrant that she would 

not be participating in the voting. 

Town Attorney Tolces announced that for the record, Mrs. Herzog also wrote a letter to the 

Town Clerk stating this, and copies were given to the Council before the meeting began. 

Town Clerk Lippman supplied a quick overview of the voting done on Don William's website, 

showing that the top three entries on his site were: 

1. Crawford 

2. Tezanos 

3. Don Williams 

He also mentioned that Boonies had donated a $25 gift certificate to the winner of the logo 

contest and that the Town would present the winner with a plaque and a certificate and that the 

logo would be posted on the Town's website as well. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 29 of 46 



Mayor Browning asked Town Staff if they had any suggestions as how the Council should begin 

the voting process. 

Councilman Autrey stated that the rules of the contest did not exclude non-residents of the 

Groves. 

Town Clerk Lippman responded that the preferred intent was to have residents only enter the 

contest. 

Town Attorney Tolces suggested that the Council might want to have general discussion of the 

logos or that they could just vote and see where that ended up. He told the Council that he had 

just handed out pieces of paper with each of their names on top. He instructed them to list their 

top three choices and explained that this would not be the final decision but that it would be 

given to the Town Clerk and we would see how it stood from there. 

The voting results were that: 

Logo #8 got 3 mentions 

Logo #1 0 got 2 mentions 

Logo #2 got 2 mentions 

Logo #4 got 2 mentions 

Logo #5 got 1 mention 

Logo #6 got 1 mention 

Logo #7 got 1 mention 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 30 of46 



Town Clerk Lippman said that they would now consider Logo #8, 2, 4, and 10 since they were 

the top four vote getters. He explained that this would be a way to make it easier. 

Councilman Lipp agreed and told Mr. Lippman it was a good idea. 

Councilman Autrey MOTIONED to select Logo #10 designed by Catrina Crawford, 

SECONDED by Councilman Lipp, and discussion was then opened: 

Town Attorney Tolces reminded the Council that Town Clerk Lippman had said that in respect to 

the dates that Town Staff could work with the artist. 

Mayor Browning said that the duplication of some of the entries would convey more then others 

in black and white. He suggested that this entry would convey very well. 

Town Attorney Tolces mentioned that since the entrant was under the age of eighteen that the 

Town would have to have an agreement of transfer with a parent and not the entrant herself. 

Councilman Lipp said the Council needed to boil it down to two and asked Councilman Autrey to 

remove his motion. 

Councilman Autrey withdrew his motion. 

The Town Council then wrote their name on the top of another paper and put their top two 

choices on it. Town Attorney Tolces then compiled the new votes. He announced the results 

that Logo #8 and Logo #10 each received two votes. 

~·*»y.~·"'··~":·X'''~''':--':'-'':~·'-':'»:-'''»·''''·~':-''l«',.:.·.~.:-~~ ",«>:~,..~-._~·"'N'#J':-~<'~~-'::':-:«.X"""'''.·''»~'''~..v.:'''=''-=-:-'':«'»:oX-:-'~ ..,.~-.::.: :««-«.: -=-Y·~"~"Y.:.""""·.~-:.~<O:'·'~"'=~"'=-:-''':':':'''·''''':«''''.'':-:>I:>:«.'' :.X(.-,::,,~««(-:-·."<".N'''-':-"-':-'X,:-,V».''x-..,,«(.'X ..-=-=-:-:.:.:-::(.:.,~ •.o..:-:.,.,.:.:-,.y.·:*: :«-»·.: 't-:.·.·.~~,.x ~..:~/Io,....·«oMoI'..: :-:-:w:"""o»:~'X~« ~~'O-.-'\( «~,.":-''''Xo(>'':''''''':.·,»:«,~:«''':N''~WA''':''''''':''.'.:-'.'.:.:.:.:.'X..~.:-" ~..v :.:-...»'X.y-"..w. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 31 of 46 



Bill Gurney-E Road-said that Logo #10 had no politics in and that it represented a totally 

natural scene which should be looked at with special meaning. 

Councilman Autrey MOTIONED again to select Logo #10 designed by Catrina Crawford, 

SECONDED by Councilman Louda, and MOTION passed unanimously, 5-0. 

Councilman Louda asked that Logo #8 entrant, Rita Miller receive a letter of special mention. 

Town Clerk Lippman said that every entrant will receive a letter thanking them and that he will 

let Rita Miller know that she came down to the wire. 

Catrina Crawford, winner of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves Logo Contest stood up and stated 

her name. 

Councilman Autrey asked for the record what kind of turtle was featured in the logo. 

Darlene Crawford, mother of Catrina answered that it was a Boxer Turtle to represent Florida. 

13. Water Utility and Conservation 

a. Water Utility Discussions with Palm Beach County (update) 
Town Manager Dr. Rosenbaum handed out a paper with a matrix of three possibilities regarding 

the handling the Water Utilities. The first would be the County being the franchise, the second 

would be the Town as the utility provider which is not cost effective, and the third is the Town as 

the utility contractual. We want to have control of our utilities and that would be provided 

through a hybrid agreement. We would purchase bulk from PBC and we would have 

responsibility for providing water service. The advantage would be to have control over the 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 32 of 46 



service area and the water consumption. I laid out the direction, but we need to converse more 

with PSC. 

Councilman Autrey said he favored Option #3 because it would put us in control which is key. 

Councilman Louda said he still had a few questions. What if we have an agreement to 

purchase X amount of gallons and we only use less then that amount? 

Town Manager Dr. Rosenbaum responded that it is based only on what you use. 

Councilman Louda asked what if we were to need more? 

Town Manager Dr. Rosenbaum responded that we could go back to the provider and ask for 

more. 

Councillllan Louda asked what advantages we have in providing consumption? 

Town Manager Dr. Rosenbaum responded that it would be an indirect way to control growth. 

Councilman Louda said that right now he sees the only users as commercial. 

Town Clerk Lippman said that if there was an agreement with the County, residents would be 

eligible to hook up. They would have to incur the cost. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 33 of 46 



Town Manager Dr. Rosenbaum said that theoretically there is not going to be a water user on 

ever parcel. 

Councilman Louda asked how much extra work would it be for Town Staff to execute Option #3 

-vs- Option #2? 

Town Manager Dr. Rosenbaum said that with Option #2 there would be none. He said that with 

Option #3 we would put it back with the County. They would do the billing. We would contract 

back with them to operate and maintain. They would provide assistance primarily to residents 

to hook up to their water. 

Councilman Louda said if the advantage of Option #3 for us is control what is the advantage of 

Option #3 for the County? 

Town Manager Dr. Rosenbaum said that is a revenue thing. They gain by selling us water. 

Mayor Browning asked about the right of ways. He said the Town doesn't have those that 

LGWCD did. 

Town Manager Dr. Rosenbaum said initially there would be a low number of residential users. 

Councilman Louda asked if it would be restricted to potable water? 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 34 of 46 



Town Manager Dr. Rosenbaum said we could bring that up. He said that Town Staff needed 

discussion and direction. He mentioned that having control is not a bad thing and could be a 

wise move. 

Bill Gurney, E Road- Mr. Gurney said that it was his understanding that this was a fact finding 

mission only for the County's desire to provide water. He said it sounds like staff is approving 

the County. He said as a resident he feels we don't need to be looking at County water anytime 

soon. He said he feels Town Staff is siding with the County. 

John Ryan, 3508 A Road- Mr. Ryan said that before we were incorporated the County gave 

Royal Palm Beach a 10% override on any future water supply. I would think automatically 

when we became a town it should have voided that. If not, any discussions with the County 

should clear that up. 

Mayor Browning asked if anyone wanted to look at Option #3. He said he agreed with Mr. 

Gurney and didn't see anything happening too quickly. 

Councilman Lipp said that as the Comprehensive Plan and Developmental Review come about 

every project needs to be compliant. He said we would have reigns. We need to maintain as 

much control over development as we can. It might not be workable. 

Town Manager Dr. Rosenbaum said that he would bring back more information. The important 

thing is control and you need a lot for different purposes. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 35 of 46 



Mayor Browning said that Mr. Ryan had a good point. Royal Palm Beach got a good deal from 

the County as far as water flowing through them to other cities when they went to County water. 

He then verified a general consensus to look at Options #2 and #3 and definitely not Option #1. 

Councilman Louda asked if the Town sets the resale price. 

Town Manager Dr. Rosenbaum responded that it would be higher or lower then it costs. You 

have to consider the deficit here. 

Councilman Autrey said that he also had concerns like Councilman Louda's. I know we have 

residents and one gentleman in particular who stated his wells is not working and they want to 

hook up. The County can't hook anyone up without our permission. Do we have an obligation 

to allow this gentleman to hook up or can we still put him on hold? 

Town Attorney Tolces responded that if it is a health or safety issue we can work with the 

County to address specific needs. 

Councilman Autrey said that people might want water. They might just say their wells are bad 

and since the water is right there can they hook up. This gentleman has been calling for weeks 

now, do we have an obligation here, we just can't say no, can we? 

Town Clerk Lippman said that this whole discussion was triggered solely by the fact that we 

received a call from the County saying now that you are an incorporated Town there are lines 

that exist and property owners that live there who want to hook up. These pipes are owned by 

PSC. We have to enter an ILA with someone. Someone has to control the water. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 36 of 46 



Town Attorney Tolces said that the County can't provide service legally and technically without 

an ILA with the Town. 

Councilman Autrey asked again about the gentleman wanting to hook up to County water. 

Town Attorney Tolces responded that there is nothing we can do other then enter into an 

agreement with the County. 

Town Clerk Lippman reviewed the three options in the matrix. He said the next step is to 

proceed with the County and find out what the options are. 

Councilman Louda asked for commercial zoning and other things such as churches and places 

required to have water we would have to have a contract agreement with the County. He asked 

about Planet Kids being able to hook up without an agreement with the County. 

Town Attorney Tolces responded he would need to research further. He said with respect to 

what extent the agreement must provider for commercial and residential properties. 

Town Clerk Lippman said to answer Councilman Autrey's question, the issue is from a legal 

point we can say no, however, if someone wants the alternative we are trying not to say no. 

Councilman Autrey responded he was trying to answer Mr. Gurney's point. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 37 of46 



Town Attorney Tolces said in requirement with agreement to what extent will the agreement 

provide. 

Bill Gurney, E Road- Mr. Gurney said if we give water to one person we will have a line 

forming of people saying that their wells are bad also. We don't want to set a precedent. The 

County runs water through my property and at some point I will have to pay for that whether I 

want to or not. 

Councilman Autrey said that decision was made a long time before us. 

Clete Saunier, LGWCD- Mr. Saunier said that first he wanted to clarify with Mr. Gurney and 

Councilman Autrey that those lines had been put down before the Town incorporated. He said 

the County had every right to put those lines here. He said only one resident is complaining of 

his well system going bad and wants the opportunity to connect to the North Road water line. 

Whether that sets a precedent or not, I don't know the attorney would know better. You could 

exempt this man and list the reasons why. What I would suggest to meet half way there would 

be to ask for a special assessment to be done on this landowner's well. He then asked with 

Option #3 would the County pay for any developing that might have to be done such as 

extended lines or a loop system to maintain pressure. 

Town Manager Dr. Rosenbaum responded that they usually do a developers agreement and 

anyone who connects has to pay the original developer to connect. 

Councilman Autrey said part of the conversation was coming up with a scheme. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 38 of 46 



Town Clerk Lippman assured the Council that Town Staff would not move forward with 

anything, or enter into any agreement unless it has been addressed and approved by the 

Council first. 

Councilman Louda said that he didn't like the idea of any running pipes or trunk lines on 

Okeechobee. 

Mr. Saunier said for the LGWCD meeting the following week he would relay that this individual 

wanting water from the County would have to have approval from the Town and the County. 

Town Clerk Lippman said the Town can issue a letter of acceptance if the individual shows 

proof of the well going bad. 

Town Attorney Tolces asked to be able to do more research before Mr. Saunier addresses his 

Board. 

Town Manager Dr. Rosenbaum told the Council this is a game plan for them and that Town 

Staff still needs to collect more information here. 

Councilman Autrey again asked about the individual. 

Town Clerk Lippman said that Staff will be contacting him and asking him to provide them with 

information on his well going bad. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 39 of46 



Town Attorney Tolces said if it is the understanding that the only legal way the County can 

provide water is with an ILA then we would need the agreement. 

Mayor Browning said if we could help this individual that would be good. 

Guy Harmon, 3453 Tangerine Road- Mr. Harmon said that he worked for PBC water for 20 

years. He said they never forced anyone to hook up to County water. He said he has heard 

people say County forces people to hook up to County water and this is only true for commercial 

places mandated by the Health Department. He said that when you take responsibility you take 

liability. He said if the Town is going to get water to talk to other cities to see what they think of 

it. 

b. Workshop with LGWCD regarding Water Issues 

i. Meeting with Clete Saunier, Administrator LGWCD 

ii. Approval of date and agenda 

Town Clerk Lippman said that he, Town Manager Dr. Rosenbaum, and Councilman Autrey had 

a meeting with Clete Saunier, Administrator LGWCD. He said the direction as to coordinating 

with Clete and the LGWCD, and South Florida Water Management to have a workshop with 

these two entities is what we need to decide now. 

Councilman Lipp called it a 3-entity workshop. 

Clete Saunier, LGWCD said that the Town Council, and the LGWCD board and supervisors
 

need to agree on an agenda of discussion topics and to get public information out as to what
 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 40 of 46 



flood control management options there are. He said that hopefully at the meeting the public 

would realize what the real world lets them do. I do want to continue this coordinated effort and 

felt we had a successful meeting. 

Councilman Lipp said some items for the agenda would be where do we go, numbers for a 

retention lake, and who is responsible for safe potable water is it the Town or is it the LGWCD. 

Town Clerk Lippman said we need to understand what they do, what their legal responsibilities 

are. I think Clete's approach is the right way. 

Councilman Louda said one big question would be what type of a drought and for how long 

should we expect wells to be at 40-50%. 

Mayor Browning said we need to come up with some dates. 

Mr. Saunier asked if there was any chance they could meet the week after Thanksgiving. He 

said it would provide flexibility for South Florida Water Management if the meeting was either 

Monday the 26th
, Tuesday the 27th

, or Thursday the 29th
. He also mentioned the venue not 

being adequate and suggested the elementary school cafeteria. 

Vice-Mayor Herzog let them know she would be out of town that week and would not be at the 

meeting. 

Mr. Saunier said he hoped we could announce the meeting through the Town's resources and 

that as many people as possible would come. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 41 of 46 



Town Clerk Lippman said he would start advertising on the website as soon as they chose a 

date for the meeting. 

Councilman Autrey said he would like to get Jay Foye on the agenda as well as somebody that 

is impartial and could speak about the issues. We tend to look at the Groves as this small 

individual Town, but we need to start working on this regionally and all get together and say we 

have a problem is there anything we can do. 

Town Clerk Lippman let Councilman Autrey know his point was well taken and that is the 

direction to eventually go. He said the purpose of this first workshop would be to explore the 

relationship of these two entities and then could go from there. This stems from a lot of citizen 

complaints coming into the office and we need to be able to have answers for them when 

questions arise about the drought. 

Councilman Louda said he would do some grant research and see if funding would be available 

to the Town. 

John Ryan, 3508 A Road- Mr. Ryan said last week he spend the better part of a day at South 

Florida Water Management District. I would hope their operations guy, Arlan Pankow could 

attend. The impression I had was our need for canal water for fire protection and wells would 

have the most impact if we were a joint voice. It is important that the Groves is now organized 

to have a voice. We used to be lost in the shuffle. We can now have our voices heard in the 

most effective way. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 42 of 46 



Town Clerk Lippman asked Mr. Ryan he could provide Arlan's contact information. 

14. DOT Southern Blvd Project 

Councilman Autrey said he had received a letter from the Department of Transportation that 

made him think about this. He said of all the communities this widening project affects the 

Groves the most and that we need to pay attention to this. 

Town Clerk Lippman said he would email copies of the letter to the Council. 

Vice-Mayor Herzog said The Sexton Engineering Firm is who contacted her to ask how the 

people of the Groves felt about the widening project and she told them they should come to the 

Council. 

Councilman Autrey said he brought it up tonight because we may want to engage and get with 

our Town Planner on this. 

Town Attorney Tolces said that DOT usually is very technical with there proceedings and if there 

is a time to comment, find out when and where so you can provide those comments. 

Vice-Mayor Herzog said that there are several public meetings in November and to contact Mike 

Sexton at the Engineering Firm to see what he knows and how we could get in the loop. 

Councilman Louda asked what is the logic for someone who builds on Southern Boulevard to 

have to do a median planning. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 43 of 46 



Clete Saunier, LGWCD, said that he wanted to let the Council know that Mr. Sexton did contact 

him and that they received the correspondence letter also. Mr. Saunier said he encourages the 

Town to keep LGWCD in the loop regarding contact with DOT and that LGWCD will do the 

same for the Town. 

Mayor Browning said we are definitely going to have to get involved. 

15. Public Comments 
Anne Parker-15565 Collecting Canal Road- said that her comments were relating to the 

Moratorium. I think you should have a full Moratorium, as I see your faces you are all tired, you 

are taking on too much too soon, you need to sit back and take a broad look. The thought of 

becoming a Town was to protect ourselves. One of my grandfather's stories was about the big 

bad wolf. This evening there were 50 big bad wolves in here. She also mentioned that the 

connection of running water to the County should not exist. She explained when she lived in 

Phoenix, Arizona and sold her place that she wound up paying taxes and interest on the lines. 

She then thanked the Council and told them she appreciated the job they are doing. 

16. Town Clerk Comments 

Town Clerk Lippman said he did not have any comments. 

17. Town Attorney Comments 
Town Attorney Tolces pointed out to the Council that he had provided them with two memos. 

The first was regarding the Comprehensive Plan. The second was about setbacks. He asked 

them to think about these and communicate their thoughts with the Town Clerk or to call him 

directly so a resolution could be an item on the next Agenda. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 44 of 46 



18. Council Member Comments 

Councilman Lipp apologized for not being on time. 

Councilman Autrey said he thought the logo contest was difficult. He said Ms. Crawford did a 

great job on that logo-the turtle was great. 

Vice-Mayor Herzog thanked Bill Gurney and Claus for preparing the PBSO office. 

Town Attorney Tolces updated the Council that Town Staff was still working with PBSO on an 

amendment to the existing lease and a sublease. 

Vice-Mayor Herzog asked when we could expect the lease to be completed. 

Town Attorney Tolces responded that hopefully by the next Town Council meeting. 

Councilman Louda asked if we have a resolution against either West County Power Point or 

Landfill. He stated that he would like this on the Agenda for next time and for staff to consider 

developing an Ordinance against the Southern Waste Authority Western Landfill Site. He 

mentioned that he would be going Thursday, Novemeber 8, 2007 to speak against this as a 

scientist but that he would not be able to speak on behalf of the Town. 

Town Clerk Lippman asked Councilman Louda to provide staff with any information from the 

meeting. 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 45 of46 



Mayor Browning thanked everyone for coming. He also let everybody know his wife was driving 

down D Road and some guy went flying past her and got pulled over. He stated he has seen 

more presence on the roads. 

Councilman Louda asked if there is a report of what is going on in the Groves to document 

where the money spent is going. 

19. Adjournment 

Vice-Mayor Herzog MOTIONED to adjourn meeting, SECONDED by Councilman 

Autrey, and the Motion passed unanimously 5-0. 

There being no further discussion and no additional public comment the meeting was 

adjourned at 10:25 p.m. 

ATTEST: 

.., "r 
I ,1ft '/'/ l' Il,l!fit I'.. " ' I l~:I; j. ,it i 

J ~. .. v -- f j ,_ I 
Matthew Lippman/,./'rown Clerk Date Approved 

I1'A1EOF,=" I
COUN1Y~n \)?I 'f) b 
, IJ~Qr,,:,"" r~~::~' d .. ~ • .... t\ ~t"",. ~"tf~~~I1.__......"af: 
1_t' JL~~ __il\.l-!.'\_~~.J.f-J ._ _, __ 
dS recorded in the Office ot the lown Cie'-:rk-.-----------

"t-+'"i" ,'\ 

WITNESS my hand ~d official seal this~dar of )Jet r '\b l I\.D. 20a.' 

\ I 

~ : "~I\tfic~lj \(~ji"1Y:_,.(t i :~:h-',:~ 

LGTC- Regular Council Meeting 
11.6.07 
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS) Page 46 of 46 


